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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NUMBER P-2012-039
Modification #1

Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) with Predictive Maintenance Module (PdM)
amendment #1 to PIB # 12.154
Dear Registered Vendors,

We would like to thank you for your interest in our above mentioned RFP.

Attached you will find answers to questions and a modified schedule for this procurement.
The new amended Schedule Summary for the RFP:

RFP Released                                                 November 27, 2012

Questions Due Date                                        December 3, 2012, No Later than 4 PM Local Time (Jordan)

Answers to Questions Due to Bidders           December 11, 2012

Bids Due                                                         January 7th, 2013, No Later than 5PM Local Time (Jordan)

Completion of Negotiations*                         January 26th , 2013

Final Award of Contract*                              January 31st , 2013

(* Contingent upon contract finalization and USAID approval if needed) 
Thanks and best regards,

Institutional Support & Strengthening Program  

Questions and Answers for

RFP No. P-2012-039

	Vendors’ Questions
	Answers 

	1- What Financial Application does have right now? Please provide full details 

2- Do you have ready workflows, Maintenance procedures or should we provide such service?

3- Do you have an Asset Registry and calculate depreciation for assets and equipments?
	1- Miyahuna uses ACCPAC (Accounting) &ALPHA.erp  (Inventory).  Vendors software just needs to be able to accept financial data at a later date.

2- Some of the Miyahuna locations have SMPs and they need to be shown how to enter the same into the chosen CMMS.

3- The asset registries for the equipment to be included in the CMMS will be complete by the time the pre roll-out activities start and presently depreciation is not calculated for all rotating assets. 

	1. The RFP doesn’t clearly specify the languages which needs to be included in the system? Shall we assume that the system needs to support Arabic & English languages (Arabic will be the default language)

2. [Page 4] at this page it is mentioned “including site visits to Central Sinai.”  is there any site visits outside Jordan?

3. [page 5] Handheld Device Interface with Visor, Palm OS, Windows CE or equivalent.  what are the minimum equivalent technologies from your point of view?

4.  [page 19] Multiple personnel must be able to assign hours to one work order.  these personnel will be doing the entry themselves or someone with “Data-Entry” role will be doing the whole entry.

5.  [page 20] Installation of the CMMS is to be accomplished by the Software supplier’s personnel or associates at the Purchaser’s location on selected server and distribution sites  does the system needs to be a centralized system (e.g. a web based system which can be used by all locations) or does each location should be able to operate alone by itself based on distributed system architecture and then all the lookup & collected data needs to be exchanges among all locations based on periodic intervals).

6. [page 20] The CMMS will accommodate cross-relation to equipment identifier codes in existing systems what are the specifications of these existing systems? Can you please provide clear description for these systems and their technologies?

7. [page 20] In a reporting server, the unique key in a host, where remote sites are combined, as "Site Code + Equipment identifier + Component".  Please we need more detailed information.

8. [page 21]  The CMMS will import equipment data, including nameplate information from an existing Machine Condition Evaluation (MCE)  is the import activity planned to be done only once (once CMMS moved to production environment) or this activity needs to be done as a scheduled task (automated) or upon request (manual)?

9. [page 24] the whole “Graphs” section is not so clear, can you please clarify it more or at least provide some screenshot(s) or draw(s) that simulate the needed requirements. 


	1- Our client’s first option is to have both languages English and Arabic, if not possible English shall be the default language.  Vendors are encouraged to provide cost difference for these two options.

2- No

3- The statement is clear.

4- Either / or.

5- The units are intended to work as stand-alone, although they must have the capability to work with 10 concurrent users. They will most likely share inventory and / or data reporting via server with other locations, if and when required in the future.

6- The Zara WTP facility has a MP2 CMMS and the Zai WTP a similar self-developed CMMS.  It is envisioned that their old codes will be accommodated for data assimilation, if relevant to the system implementation exercise.

7- Simply each site must have a unique identifier code so that when information like inventory, etc. is shared that one doesn’t override the other.

8- Upon request.

9- No, the statement t is perfectly clear.

	1- What are the existing systems? 

2- What type of integration is required with the existing systems? 

3- Appendix B refers to an offer for ‘Training’ while the tender is for “Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) with Predictive Maintenance Module (PdM)”. 

4- Appendix C is missing. 
	1- MP2 and a similar self-developed CMMS

2- Only the importation of historical data if possible.

3- Attached is the revised Appendix

4- There is no appendix C.

	1. What is the required bill of the quantities (BOQ) for the handheld devices?

2. What is the technical specification of the handheld device?

3. What is the Number of CMMS Users for each Location (Zai, Zara, Abu Nuseer, and water Distribution Maintenance Center)? 

4. Do you have Maps, and navigations? If not, is it required in the system? 

5. Please we need more clarification about this point “Each Module must provide easy export or import of data, including GIS spatial / Mapping”?

6. For the tree view of the assets management specified in the RFP, can you please clarify the number of levels that are required, for example (2, 3,…etc. or unlimited levels)?

7. For the "equipment reading" do you mean reading the equipment barcode? If not, please specify the type of reading being read? 


	1- None. (0)

2- The only specification is for the CMMS to be able to accept downloaded information from HHUs.

3- Not know at this point but the software must be capable of 10 con-current users, although the intention is for stand-alone usage initially.

4- The pump stations may have GIS Map information to capture

5- Vibration data, inventory parts usage, maintenance labor data, spread sheets  data or HHU data.

6- We are talking about machine sets with motors, gear reducers, driven item and electrical gear.  (4 to 8) most likely. 

7- Run hrs., amps, volts, KW hrs., cm/sec-vibration, power factor, temperatures, etc.  

	1. It’s required to deploy the system in four locations, what is the synchronization/mirroring required between these locations? Or each location will operate as a separate location?

2. It’s required to integrate with HR and inventory, please provide more detailed information for these two systems.

3. Page 19, section “Installation and Training”, is it required to provide item price for installation and training for the 4 locations mentioned in the RFP document or for each extra location other than the 4 locations?

4. Please provide more information on the “Machine Condition Evaluation” system used such as stored information, what to import from this system and any available description on interface or exporting capabilities of this system. 

5. Page 21, section “External Reporting Capability”, is it required to provide a database replication for all the mentioned database systems (5 database systems)?

6. Page 21, section “External Reporting Capability”, the CMMS system includes a reporting module, what is the need for external reporting features?

7. Are there any hardware devices available at the client side to be used by the vendor?
	1. Each is a stand-alone.

2. Just labor rates and inventory stock usage with respect to the CMMS’s own inventory control feature.  The client will interface with central stores separately from the supplied inventory features.

3. Each of the 4 locations.

4. Machine condition evaluations or monitoring will include tribology data on lubricants, vibration data for motors, pumps, blowers, gear units, conveyors, etc., plus Infrared thermography photos.  

5. No, not all sites have previously existing data bases.  Most likely the 2 WTPs have existing data bases to be considered.

6. Inventory, maintenance backlog, annual reports, labor usage, PdM trend data, purchase requests, etc. 

7. Yes.  A new PC with Widows 8, a wireless laser printer & flat screen monitor will be set aside for the CMMS/PdM. 

	(1) How are sites connected to each other’s?

(2) Should the system be centralized / decentralized?

(3) What are the automated systems existing at different sites?

(4) What is the number of records to be loaded in the new system?

(5) Is the new system going to be integrated with other systems, what are they? What technologies do they use?

(6) If integration is required, what type of integration is needed “Read, Read & Write, Write”, “Uni-directional, and Bi-directional”?

(7) What are the technical architectures/specifications of current hardware and infrastructure that will deploy and operate the new system?

(8) What are the departments going to use the system, which is going to be the system owner (Business or IT)?

(9) What is the number of IT staff at where the system will be deployed taking into considerations whether the system is (Centralized or Decentralized)?

(10) In case of proposal delivery by e-mail, it is supposed to submit one technical copy and one financial copy each in separate e-mail, please confirm?
	1. They are not except via internet & that does not  concern this roll-out 

2. Decentralized.

3. N/A.

4. Approximately that pertaining to two hundred machine sets per location.

5. Not expected now.

6. N/A.

7. Each Site will have a new PC w/ Windows 8 (64 bit),  1TB hard Drive and a Core i5, i5-3330, Quad-core, 3 GHz Processor, 6 MB cache, Wireless Laser Printer & Flat Screen monitor

8. The Maintenance Department and Directorate Manager for each location.

9. Decentralized with up to 10 users per location but most likely less.

10. Yes, Proposal should be submitted in two files; one technical and one financial



	What are the amounts of the "required insurance coverage" in Appendix A, item 3.

Please return or reference an example "Standard Form of Bid Letter of Guarantee".

Should this have been Appendix C?

Is a bid bond or performance bond required?

What is Appendix C in II. Cost Proposal, item 3.

... 3. Information in Appendix B and Appendix C fully completed.

I do not see an Appendix C.


	Appendix B; The insurance coverage should be a performance bond for the an amount not less than 10% of total contract value

There is no appendix C

Bid bond is not required, but a Performance Bond will be required

There is no appendix C

	1- Cost Proposal     (Page 2):

============================

#- Point 2: Please provide more clarification on this point? Should submit Bank letter of Guarantee? if yes; what is the amount/percentage?

#- Point 3: the RFP includes Appendix A and B, I couldn't find Appendix C; Please advice?

2- System Requirements (Page 5):

============================

#- How many Summary Management reports are needed? If possible; description of such reports?

#- What are current systems available in Myahuna needed to be replace or integrated with new system? (i.e. SCADA system, or Asset / Machine Condition Evaluation, etc...)

3- General:

============================

#- Is there any data to be converted to into the new system from other legacy systems? if yes; please advice about data size?


	1- Bid bond is not required, but a Performance Bond will be required

There is no appendix C

2- The only systems being replaced are an outdated unsupported version of DataStream’s MP2 and another similar outdated self-developed CMMS.  So the old systems are of little consequence other than some historical data preservation.  These will be stand-alone sites.

3- Unknown but should be transferred to excel spreadsheets prior to the roll-out for ease of integration.

	1. The technical team would like to set a site visit to the location to get a full understanding and to be familiar with the site conditions, kindly advice the suitable time for conducting such visit, our available times are “Sunday” to “Thursday” from “8:00” to “4:00” ASAP.

2. Kindly notice that Annex C is missing, please advice.

3. Can we have a list and its details about the current infrastructure (Hardware, Software, no. of machines, Network facilities, hosting structure…etc) especially that you mentioned in page 21 of Annex A "Existing Machine Condition Evaluation (MCE) and page 24 of Annex A “SCADA system”, and please define the integration level between the suggested system and such infrastructure?

4. Do you have any recommendations/preference wither the solution will be a centralized system in one location and accessed by the other 4 locations or installed to be functioning separately in each and every location taking synchronization options between them?

5. Are we expected to provide ISSP/USAID with the hardware (servers, client machines, handheld devices) suggestions/ recommendations to be used in the suggested solution 

6. The software licenses for application needs (database licenses, Software licenses)

7. What functionality and models will be included within Hand Held devices?

8. What type and how many hand held devices are required, and kindly define the means in which the Hand Held devices are be synchronized with the main system (online of offline)?

9. In page 4 of the RFP document, we need more details about “Predictive Alarm” and examples of the needed Predictive Alarm parameters.

10. In page 5 of the RFP document, we need more details about “Personal Management” and define the needs and meaning of (Rate, time and skill) and how they relate.

11. In page 5 of the RFP please provide more details about the structure needed in the Image viewer.

12. In page 19 of Annex A, kindly explain the tagging operation mentioned in point A “– tag records selected for reporting and processes”.

13. In page 19 of Annex A, kindly provide the level of deepness, and more details about “Each module must provide easy export or import of data, including GIS spatial / mapping”.

14. In page 19 of Annex A, kindly provide more details about the “Nameplate information must be free‐form to accommodate various sets of nameplate information.”
15. In page 19 of Annex A, kindly define the prioritization level of orders needed.

16. It was mentioned in page 5 of the RFP that the system shall have one year of maintenance while in page 19 of the Annex A it includes that CMMS should have an initial sixty (60) day warranty, which begins at the conclusion of the installation and training phase those contradict, please advice.

17. In page 21 of Annex A, you mentioned the external reporting capability, kindly explain more about the reports needed and their formats, and the relation meant with (MS Access, MS SQL Server, Sybase, My SQL, Oracle).
	1. The request is under discussions, will inform all vendors should a visit be arranged

2. There is no appendix C

3. There will be approximately 200 to 300 machine sets at 3 of the locations and the Wastewater Plants & P/S most likely 300-400 machine sets. 

The system has to be capable of handling SCADA inputs with runtime electrical data from Pump Stations and machine condition monitoring data will most likely be manually entered.

4. Not centralized. Stand-alone.

5. No.

6. Yes

7. N/A the system only needs to be capable of accepting HHU downloaded data.

8. N/A

9. cm/sec of vibration, Tribology wear particle, contaminant & viscosity data, IR thermography images.

Alarms will be parameters of the above that exceed the established machinery health institute standards for the same.  Both warning and alarm levels.

10. The corrective and PdM work orders need to track inventory usage/cost and labor utilization and rates rolled up to cost of repairs.

11. An image viewer refers to one that can display IR of pictures and visible pictures of electrical infrastructure.

12. A search feature, sorting features, filtering and grouping (tagging per group or data set) capability should be provided in each module.  This is only for facilitating handling data and reporting requirements.

13. The modules must be able to accept HHU data syncs and spreadsheet imports for various parameters, ie: labor utilization, inventory reduction, labor usage and PdM information specified in the prior questions

14. Machine set nameplate data and OEM provided literature.

15. All maintenance activities have priorities related to their criticality to the level of service.  It should be obvious that we mean they are ranked.

16. The one year is in addition to the initial 60 day that follows the installation. 14 months total.

17. The software must be capable of external reporting through any or all of the methods listed such as inventory, purchase requests, maintenance / cost reports, backlog reports, labor utilization reports,  etc.

	1. In Page 19, point c, “Each module must provide easy export or import of data, including GIS spatial / mapping”, what GIS spatial data is expected, where does it exist, and how it shall be entered? 

2. Will software licenses be added to the offer? Does USAID have a special pricing or discount for licenses like Microsoft? 

3. Will deployment be in one location having the solution as a web-based (client-server application) or it will be deployed disconnected in each location and each of the locations is separated from the others? 

4. Are handheld devices already available at Miyahuna? 

5. Will the bidder create an application module to read data from the handheld machine which will pull its data through the native applications there or the bidder will develop a special application to manage the required operation on the system? 

6. What is the size of current data to be imported in terms of number of records and size? 

7. How current data will be provided and will its structure be explained? 

8. Will the training be done on the head-quarter or one location for all users or we will visit each location? 

9. In the case of email submission of proposals, will it be on the same email address ISSP@isspjordan.org? 

10. Where is the office location of hard copy submission? And is email submission enough? 


	1. It may be gathered manually, via HHU, via SCADA or non-destructive testing devices such as Vibration analyzers, IR Cameras, tribology lab results, via the internet or spreadsheet, etc.

2. No, only the licenses for the supplied CMMS/PdM software.

3. The units will be deployed stand-alone in each location.

4. No, the software only has to have the capability of importing HHU data.

5. The software must be able to accept HHU data and incorporate the same readily into the appropriate database set.

6. The current data will be nameplate and OEM data for approximately 900 machine sets and their respective MCCs. 

7. The majority will be in MS Excel Spreadsheets and some may be migrated via Ethernet from existing CMMS software, if applicable. 

8. The training will be done at each site

9. YES. Refer to RFP

10. Details are in the RFP document, SECTION II, Point 1.1


